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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
{(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been estaplished as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In particular,
companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be
risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potantial risks of invasting in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is @ market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies
are not generally required o issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to
have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

This annual repart, for which the directors of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the "Directors™) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard ta Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited. The directors,
having made afl reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the hest of their knowledge and beiief.- (1) the information contained in this annual report
is accurate and coinplete in all material respects and not misteading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this annual report misleading, and (3) afll opinions expressed in this annual report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonahle.
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| CORPORATE PROFILE

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) on 29 March 2000 as a Sino-foreign joint stock company with
limited liability under the PRC Company Law. The Company was listed on Growth Enterprise Market
(*GEM") on 27 July 2000 and was the first H Share listed on GEM. (Stock Code: 8095)

The Company is one of the leading software developers and integrated circuit designers in the PRC
with expertise in developing software applications and designing integrated circuits for embedded
system products.

The Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are engaged. in: the research, development,
manufacturing, marketing, and sale of embedded system products including, Network Security Products,
Wireless Fire Alarm Systems, Application Specific Integrated Circuits, Smart Card Application Systems,
Remote Automatic Meter-Reading Systems and related products. The Group is also engaged in.the
sales of computer products and provision of total solutions services through the applications of its
existing embedded system products.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

; RMB’000 2004 2003 2002 200t 2000

~ Turnover 130,503 .0199,740 . 250,463 124,617 60,843

. (180,859) (185,305)  (188,155). (90,346)

Earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation, -
amortization, impairment of o » .
goodwill and minority interest 255,811 25,745 72,681 40,641 27,301

E ha ré‘hvb_ltdérs_ 5
Earnings per share

~ basic (RMB cents) S 208 4.4 39 - . 38

Total assets -~~~ = .. 1,188,482 " 995055 - 877,955 . 831,372 386,800 -

Minority interests .. 3470 8131 8759 1,558 -
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| | GORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During the year, the Group achieved a very substantial growth of operating profit from RMB16 miilion
in 2003 to RMB243 million, despite the fact that the Group’s turnover decreased by 35% tc RMB131
million for the year as compared to last year’s RMB200 miilion. The huge increase in operating profit is
largely attributable to the disposal of part of the Group’s interest in Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”) as mentioned in next paragraph.

In March 2004, SMIC issued a prospectus in relation to the global offering of its shares. In this
connection, the Group disposed of part of its shares investment in SMIC of 156,842,000 shares with
net proceeds of approximately RMB437 million and a gain of approximately RMB289 million. After the
disposal, the Group still holds 383,163,400 ordinary shares in SMIC, representing approximately 2.1%
of the issued share capital of SMIC.

Among the Group's different business segments, the wireless fire alarm system ("WFAS”) was the
biggest profit contributor. For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and profit contributed
from the wireless fire alarm system products were RMB44,244,000 and RMB7,302,000 respectively.

The success of WFAS was principally due to the improved product quality and retiability in attracting
customers of different industrial sectors. Accompanied by the expansion of distribution network across
the nation in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the strengthening of the after-sale
services, WFAS is capable to attain a significant growth in revenue by 42% from last year’s; and
together with the improved gross margin through tighter cost control, WFAS is capable to become the
Group's biggest contributing business segment in this year. WFAS is one of the top five fire alarm
participants in the PRC market.

During the year, the Group had also raticnalized its business operating structure by disposing its 60%
subsidiary, Beijing Beida Jade Bird Silicon Innovation Company Limited, whose operating results for
few years after establishment were below the Board's expectation.

The prevailing information technology (“IT”) market is very competitive in the PRC and most of the IT
participants is confronting with new challenge. Under this circumstances, the Group is finding its way
to diversify and explore new avenue. In March 2005, the Group had taken its move to sign up a
conditional agreement to invest into a transportation hub property project in city centre of Beijing on
the Board’s believing in the potential of the property sector of Beijing before and after the 2008
Olympics Games. The Board at the same time hope this property project, after the Group's equity
interest is secured in the future, could bring in new opportunity to the Group's existing IT businesses
in terms of, for example, provision of wireless fire alarm systems and network security systems etc.

Xu Zhen Dong

Chairman

Beijing, the People's Republic of China
30 March 2005
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MANAGEMENTDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

The audited consolidated turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004 amounted to
RMB130,503,000 (2003 - RMB199,740,000).

The decrease in turnover was primarily due to a substantial reduction in both the sales of embedded
systems and related products which recorded a decrease of RMB37.7 million to RMB77.2 million from
RMB114.9 miilion in last year, as well as the sale of computer products which recorded a decrease of
RMB19.5 million to RMB50.9 million from RMB70.4 million in last year. The higher margin total
solution services business also experienced a significant decrease of RMB12.0 million to RMB2.4
million from RMB14.4 million in last year. The overall decrease is mainly attributable to the competitive
market in the PRC and the lower than expected revenue achieved by a subsidiary disposed near the
year end which was engaged in integrated circuits business. For the year ended 31 December 2004,
the turnover from the sales of embedded system products and related products, sales of computer
products and total solution services were approximately 59%, 39% and 2% respectively as compared
to the more evenly distributed sales mix of 57%, 35% and 8% respectively in the last year.

Operating Profit

The operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004 amounted to RMB243,179,000
(2003 - RMB16,312,000}. The significant increase was due to the recording of the investment income
of RMB289,214,000 (2003: Nil) on disposal of part of the Group's interest in Semiconductor
Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC”) in March 2004,

On the other hand, the operating results of the Group in other areas were affected by the decrease in
the revenue of total solution services which carried a higher margin. In addition, sales of embedded
systems as well as sales of computer products also recorded decrease in gross profit margin. During
the year, the Group also recorded a substantial provision for doubtful debts of RMB34,534,000 (2003:
write-back of RMB1,603,000) because the management adopted a conservative approach in one-off
re-assessing the recoverable value of long outstanding accounts receivable.

Finance Cost
The interest expense recorded a slight decrease of RMB1.1 million to RMB11.3 million from RMB12.4

million in last year. It was mainly due to the USD10 million partial repayment of the Group's bank loan
during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders and earnings per share of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2004 were RMB234,185,000 (2003 - RMB7,136,000) and RMB20.4 cents (2003 -
RMBO.7 cent) respectively.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has financed its operation mainly by equity, funds generated from operating activities and
short term bank loans.

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had cash on hand of RMB322 million and USD short term bank
loans totaling RMB310 million (USD37.5 million) borrowed for financing the investment in SMIC. The
aforesaid USD short term bank loans were guaranteed by a shareholder of the Company and a
subsidiary of Peking University.

On 8 June 2004, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing agent for the placing
of 80,800,000 new H Shares at a price of HK$0.75 per H share (“the Placing”). On 18 June 2004, the
Company completed the Placing and obtained the approval from GEM Listing Committee for the
listing of and permission to deal in the 80,800,000 new H Shares. The proceeds from the Placing were
credited to the books of the Company in June 2004 and was used for general working capital
purpose. The dealings of new H shares commenced on 21 june 2004.

Other Financial Measures

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had a gearing ratio (the ratio of total borrowings to total equity)
and the ratio of current liabilities to total assets of 38% and 31%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had capital commitments of RMB2,461,000 (2003: Nil) and no
contingent liabilities. (2003: Nil)

As at 31 December 2004, the Group did not have any buiidings, machinery and equipment pledged as
collaterai for the Group's banking facilities. As at 31 December 2003, the Group’s buildings, machinery
and equipment with an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB1,097,000 were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities.
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| Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Network Security System

During the year, the Group completed the research and development of H323 agent technology and
continued develop centralised control channel technology. The Group has completed the production
of 70 units of JB-FW1/100 and 8 units of JB-FW1/1000. During the period, the Group completed the
grading assessment by China Ministry of Public Security.

During the year, Wuhan Beida Jade Bird Netsoft Company Limited ("Wuhan Netsoft”), a subsidiary of
the Company, has completed the research and development of the network management platform
software NetSureExpertS5.3 version (enhanced version with supporting the multi-layer infrastructure
technology) and also NetSureExpert5.31 version. Wuhan Netsoft is currently developing the desktop
management function module technology (WMI) and plans to develop NetSureExpertS.4 version,
VLAN and MPLS VPN technology. During the year, the following projects were completed: Service
contracts with The People’s Procuratcrate of Wuhan, China Southern Aviation Industry Co., Ltd,
PetroChina South China Distribution Ltd, Shandong Tobacco Ltd, North China Pharmaceutical Group
Corporation, Department of Education of Guangzhou, Nanjing University of Posts, Harbin Normal
University, Handan Municipa! Government etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and loss incurred by the network security system
products were RMB9,430,000 and RMB4,325,000 respectively.

Wireless Fire Alarm System

in term of the network, during the period, the Group had completed the research and development of
the municipal concentrative fire protection application technology. The Group is researching the
application of embedded system on the fire protection application technology, as weil as the low-
pressured carbon dioxide controller technology. In term of the hardware, during the period, the Group
had completed the research and development of the network communication card, the fire alarm
controller (linkage), the non-address feeling smoke detector, the non-establishment feeling warm
detector product, right now researches and develops the feeling smoke detector (the PIC16F676 chip)
the product.

During the period, the Group manufactured 20 units of the JB-QB-JBF-11S/CD6 fire alarm controller
(linkage) and 8600 units of the JTW-ZD-LN2110/C non- address feeling warm detector.

During the period, the Group completed the major project for Jingmen Project of Beijing Longjian
Group Ltd., Beijin'g Century Spring Garden Project of Shanghai Hehe Engineering Technology Ltd.,
State Administration Taxation Huairou Training Centre of Huaian Fair Protection Co., Ltd. and Shuang
Garden Project of Beijing Andisheng Security System Autoimmunization Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the period, the Group participated in various types of exhibitions, such as the 10th (nternational
Fire Fighting Equipment Technological Exchange Exhibition held by China Fire Protection Association,
and National Fire Prevention Standardization Technical Committee Sixth Technical Sub-Committee held
by National Technical Committee for Fire Protection Standardization, establishment meeting of China
Fire Protection Association Electronic Profession Branch held by China Fire Protection Association Fire
Prevention Electronic Professioﬁ Branch; "Fire Auto-alarm System Construction and Approval Standard”
(revision for approval manuscript) the examining committee held by Shenyang Fire Prevention Research
Institute of China Ministry of Public Security. As a consequence, the Group’s fire protection products
were extensively promoted and their brand images were well established in the industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and profit contributed from the wireless fire
alarm system products were RMB44,244,000 and RMB7,302,000 respectively.

Security 1Cs

During the year, the Group disposed of a 60% held subsidiary, Beijing Silicon innovation Company
Limited for a cash consideration of RMB3,600,000 and at a gain of RMB1,254,000. The disposal was
made due to the lower than expected revenue achieved since establishment of the subsidiary few

years ago.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and profit contributed from the security ICs
products were RMB25,434,000 and RMB787,000 respectively.

Smart Card Application System

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and loss incurred by the smart cards application
system products were RMB106,000 and RMB39,000 respectively.

Remote Meter Reading System

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and loss remote meter reading system products
were RMB420,000 and RMB2,390,000 respectively.

Computer products
The significant drop in sale of computer products was predominantly owing to less efforts spent in
promaoting the sale of computer products in light of the slimmer profit margin under the prevailing

highly competitive IT market in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the turnover and profit contributed from computer products
were RMB50,869,000 and RMB362,000 respectively. '
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC”)

2004 was a remarkable year with significant achievements for SMIC. In January 2004, SMIC completed
the acquisition of Fab 7, an 8-inch wafer fab located in Tianjin, China, and commenced mass production
in May 2004. In March 2004, SMIC successfully completed initial public offering on both the New
York Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, raising approximately US$1 billion. In July
2004, SMIC commenced pilot production at Fab 4, being China’s first 12-inch fab, in Beijing. For the
year ended 31 December 2004, SMIC also achieved its first year of profitability.

While 2005 looks to be a year of flat growth for the semiconductor industry with demand improving
as the year progresses, SMIC will continue to aggressively pursue new customers both globally and
domestically by offering them leading edge foundry services. SMIC believe that the Greater China
region will continue to exhibit strong growth and demand.

Government Approval and Awards

In November 2004, the Beida Jade Bird gateway firewall JB-FW1/100 and JB-FW1/1000 was awarded
computer information system security specialized product sale permission certificate issued by the
China Ministry of Public Security Public Information Network Security Supervision Bureau.

Feeling smoke detector JBF-LN-2100/C and JBF-LN-2110/C obtained the quality approval examination
certificate issued by the National Fire Prevention Electronic Products Quality Surveillance Test Center.

Staff

At present, the Group has approximately 225 (2003 - 202) employees, of which 2 possess the
doctorate degree, 28 possess the master degree and 122 possess the bachelor degree. Under the
Group's existing organization structure, the research, development and technical support team has
over 117 members, while the marketing and sales team has 52 members.



Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited » Annual Report 2004

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Zhen Dong, aged 41, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the board of Directors of
the Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic planning, corporate formulation
and financial strategies. In 1987, Mr. Xu graduated from the Computer Science and Technology
Department of Peking University. Mr. Xu is the director and general manager of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Limited and the chairman of the board and authorised representative of Weifang Beida Jade Bird
Huaguang Technology Company Limited, Shenzhen Macat Optics and Electronics Company Limited
and Beijing Beida Culture Development Company Limited.

Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang, aged 40, is an executive Director and the president of the. Company. He is
responsible for the Company’s sales and marketing in the PRC. Mr. Xu graduated from Peking University
with a bachelor degree in computer science and technology specialising in software and subsequently
obtained a master degree in software engineering and computer science from Software Research
Centre of the Science Institute of the PRC. Mr. Xu is also the chairman of the board of Beijing
Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Company Limited and Wuhan Beida Jade Bird Netsoft Company Limited, the
director and general manager of Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Commercial Information System
Company Limited and the director of Shenzhen Macat Optics and Electronics Company Limited.

Mr. Zhang Wan Zhong, aged 42, is an executive Director and vice president of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for the overall administration, corporate matters and public relations of the
Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Peking University with a master degree in science. Mr. Zhang
held various positions in the administrative arm of Peking University including the professor of the
Remote Sensing and Geographic Information System Department of Peking University which was
responsible for the State’s focal science and technology project relating to key problem solving. Mr.
Zhang is also the vice president of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited and Beijing Beida Education
Investment Company Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon, aged 49, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lo possesses
over 20 years of experience in the financial, securities and futures industries. He has been a member
of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME) and IMM since 1986. Mr. Lo is the chairman and an
executive director of Cheung Tai Hong Holdings Limited, and the deputy chairman of Tai Fook Securities
Group Limited. He is also an executive director of international Entertainment Corporation (formerly
known as “Cyber On-Air Group Company Limited”) and The Kwong Sang Hong International Limited,
and a non-executive director of New World Mobile Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed
on the Stock Exchange.

iR
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| :;Proﬂle of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. Liu Yong Jin, aged 57, graduated from the Department of Mathematics of Peking University
majoring in computing mathematics and is a researcher and senior engineer of Peking University. Mr.
Liu has participated in certain national key scientific and technology projects and has been awarded
the second prize in advancement of technology of Peking University and the special prize in science of
the former State Ministry of Electronics Industry. Mr. Liu is the Vice President of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Company Limited responsible for human resources, administration and management of business
etc.

Mr. Hao Yi Long, aged 41, graduated from the Faculty of Computer of Peking. University with a
master’s degree majoring in microelectronics and has been working with Peking University. Mr. Hao is
the chairman of the board of Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Company,
the deputy director of the Institute of Microelectronics of Peking University and a committee member
of the Sixth Session of China Electronics and Semiconductor and System Integration Technology Sub-
Committee. Mr. Hao has published over 40 theses and acquired two State patents. Mr. Hao's research
projects include the design methodology in microelectronics system, modeling, database and simulation
in MEMS, MEMS processes development, micro accelerometer and integrated circuits processes
development.

Mr. Wu Min Sheng, aged 43, graduated from Beihang University with a bachelor's degree in
engineering. Mr. Wu also holds a master’s degree from China North Industries Corporation and has
principally engaged in the research in computing and power mathematics. He was formerly the sales
director (financial industry), assistant to general manager and deputy general manager of Beijing
Beida Commercial Information System Company Limited. Mr. Wu is the director and general manager
of Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Science and Technology Company Limited.

Mr. Li Li Xin, aged 43, graduated from the Faculty of Economics and Management of Tsinghua
University with a master's degree. Mr. Li has engaged in specialized investment, establishment, operation
and management of enterprises for over ten years and has extensive experience in product development,
technology development, market development, capital management and resources integration. Mr. Li
joined Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company Limited as vice president in year 2001.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang, aged 40, graduated from Rutgers University in the United States of America (the “USA")
with a MBA degree and is the founding parnter and chief executive officer of ChinaEquity Investment
Co. ("ChinaEquity”), a leading venture capital firm based in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") focusing on technology, media and telecommunication sector in the Greater China. Prior to
founding ChinaEquity in 1999, Mr. Wang has over twelve years of experience in investment banking
and financial services with J. P. Morgan Chase & Co., Standard & Poor's, Morgan Stanley Asia Co. in
the USA and China Development Bank in the PRC, participated in a wide range of corporate and
financial management projects. At present, Mr. Wang also serves as an advisor to the PRC projects in
the Global Environment Funds of the World Bank, a special advisor to Personnel Exchanges Center of
the China Academy Science of the PRC, and an advisor to the Commerce Bureau of the Beijing
Municipal Government of the PRC and the founding Board Governor and the Secretary General of
China Venture Capital Association in the PRC. Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of the Company in December 2004.

Prof. Nan Xiang Hao, aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Prof. Nan is currently a part-time professor in the graduate school of
University of Science and Technology of China. Prof. Nan was previously a supervisor of The Third
Information Cryptology Commissary of The Chinese Computer Association. Prof. Nan was awarded
various science awards such as the Second Prize of State Technological Achievement.

Prof. Chin Man Chung, Ambrose, aged 39, is an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company. He graduated from the Chinese Language and Literature
Department of Peking University with a master degree in Literature. Prof. Chin is currently a professor
of the faculty of history of Fudan University and a researcher of morality and religion research centre
of Tsinghua University. Prof. Chin has publication of thesis “Fu Ji Ya” etc. and received the First Prize
of "Ji Xianlin” Oriental Literature Prize. Prof. Chin was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of the Company in April 2002.

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Prof. Wang Yang Yuan, is appointed as the Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2003. Prof. Wang
will be responsible for the Company’s overall technology research and development and monitoring
the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC*”). Prof. Wang is
also the chairman of the board of Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (Shanghai),
a wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC. '

13
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‘ -'.:‘_prvg:fil_:e_of Directors, Supervisors and 'Senior Management

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zhang Yong Li, aged 40, is chairman of the Company’s supervisory committee. He graduated
from the Geology Department of Peking University with a bachelor degree in Geology and subsequently
obtained a doctorate degree in science from Chinese Science University. Mr. Zhang held various
positions in the Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company Limited mainly in the areas of accounting and
administration and has been appointed as deputy general manager and chief financial officer of
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company Limited since November 1998. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman of the
supervisory committee of Shenzhen Macat Optics and Electronics Company Limited.

Mr. Du Hong, aged 52, is an independent Supervisor. He is currently a member of the qualification
assessment committee of the State’s Office senior engineering technology, @ member of the assessment
committee of the State's Science and Technology Advancement Award and a member of the strategic
research expert committee of the State’s “Eight, Six, Three” Plan relating to information security
technology development. He is a senior engineer and was the president of the State Secrecy Bureau.

Ms. Lu Qing, aged 40, is an independent Supervisor. Ms. Lu graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor degree in economics and subsequently obtained a master degree in economics and politics.
In 1996, Ms. Lu obtained a master degree in business administration from HEC School of Management,
Paris, France. Ms. Lu has extensive experience in investment consulting.

Mr. Li De Yong, aged 41, holds a master’s degree in law from the Peking University. Mr. Li has
worked in China Mechanical Machine and Accessories Engineering Company and is a qualified senior
engineer. He has participated in various environmenta! protection projects and had extensive experience
in marketing. Mr. Li then worked in the personnel department of Peking University and has extensive
experience in human resources and management. Mr. Li jeined Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company
Limited as assistant to President in year 2003.

Ms. Dong Xiao Qing, aged 36, joined Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company Limited in March 1999
responsible for human resources. In June 2000, Ms. Dong was appointed as the head of the human
resources department of the Company. Ms. Dong has over six years experience in human resources in
IT industry. She is familiar with the State Labour Law and has practical experience in human resources.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Managemen\t__w o

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Duan Yun Suo, aged 38, is a research manager and vice president of the Company. He obtained
a doctorate in medicine engineering of Zhejiang University. He carried out post-doctorate research in
the Computer Science and Technology Department of Peking University. Since 1997, he was an
associate professor of the Computer Science and Technology Department of Peking University. Mr.
Duan has extensive experience in research and development of network and information security and
communication.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 40, is the financial controller and the company secretary of the Company.
He has over 16 years of experience in auditing, accounting, taxation and financial management in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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~ | REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2004,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the research, development, manufacturing, marketing and sale
of embedded systems products, including network security products, wireless fire alarm systems,
application specific integrated circuits, smart card application systems, remote automatic meter-reading
systems and related products. The Group is also engaged in the sale of computer products and the
provision of total solution services through the application of its existing embedded system products.

In December 2004, the Company disposed of its 60% owned subsidiary, Beijing Silicon Innovation
Company Limited, for a consideration of RMB3,600,000. Save as disclosed above, there were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2004 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 30 to 84 of this Annual Report.

An interim dividend of RMB 11,848,000 (RMB1 cent per share) was declared-and paid in 2004 (2003:
Nil).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year (2003: Nil).
SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION |

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the
last five financial years and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 3. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year, together with the reasons
thereof, are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, no share options were granted (2003: Nil). Details of the
Company's share option scheme are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the
Company Law of the PRC which cblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s
listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2004, in accordance with the PRC Company Law, an amount of approximately
RMB378 million standing to the credit of the Company’s capita! reserve account, and an amount of
approximately RMB53 million standing to the credit of the Company's statutory reserve funds (details
of which are set forth in note 28 to the financial statements), as determined under the PRC accounting
standards and regulations, were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation issue. In
addition, the Company had, as detailed in note 28 to the financial statements, accumulated losses of
approximately RMB24 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 34% of the total sales for
the year while the largest customer accounted for 10% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers also accounted for 56% of the total purchases for the year while the
largest supplier accounted for 30% of the total purchases for the year.

The Group has sold certain products and provided certain services to certain companies with the same
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, details of which are set out in the note “Connected
transactions” below. Save as aforesaid, none of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
supplies.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Xu Zhen Dong

Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang

Mr. Zhang Wan Zhbng

Mr. Gao Zhi Kai, Victor (resigned on 12 March 2004)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon
Mr. Liu Yong Jin

Mr. Hao Yi Long

Mr. Wu Min Sheng

Mr. Ui Li Xin

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wang Chao Yong

Prof. Nan Xiang Hao

Prof. Chin Man Chung, Ambrose

Supervisors:

Mr. Zhang Yong Li
Mr. Du Hong

Ms. Lu Qing

Mr. Li De Yong

Ms. Dong Xiao Qing

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except for Mr. Wang Chao Yong whose contract commencement date is 17 December 2004, each of
the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 25 June 2003.

As at 31 December 2004, none of the Directors has any existing or proposed service contracts with

the Company, excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of the directors and supervisors of the Company, and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 11 to 15 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director and supervisor had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Company has entered into certain contracts with connected parties of the Group. Further details
of the transactions undertaken in connection with these contracts during the year are explained in the
note “Connected transactions” below and included in note 32 to the financial statements. The
contract terms have been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2004, the interests and short positions of the directors, supervisors and chief executive
in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Qrdinance (the “SFO")), which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to: (a) Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which each of them is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) which will be required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to in that section; or (¢) will be required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
Approximate

percentage of  Approximate
Number of shares held, the Company's percentage of

capacity and nature of interest total issued the Company’s
Beneficiary domestic total issued
Name of director Note of a trust share capital share capital
1. Mr. Xu Zhen Dong (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
2. Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
3. Mr. Zhang Wan Zhong (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
4, Mr. Liu Yong Jin (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
5. Mr. Wu Min Sheng (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
Name of supervisor
1. Mr. Zhang Yong Li (a) 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
2, Mr. Dong Xiao Qing (a) . 220,000,000 31.43% 18.57%
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Note:

(a) The above directors and supervisors of the Company are taken to be interested in the issued share capital
of the Company through their respective interests as beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng
Huat Trust. By a declaration of trust ("Heng Huat Trust”) made as a deed on 19 July 2000, Mr. Xu Zhen
Dong, Mr. Zhang Wan Zhong and Ms. Liu Yue (who has been replaced by Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang since 9 May
2003 as a trustee) declared that they held the shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng Huat") as
trustees for the benefits of 477 employees of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Company, Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Limited, Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Company and Beijing
Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Company Limited and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies
and the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in approximately 93.37% in the issued share capital
of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic Win"), and is taken to be interested in 220,000,000 shares of
the Company which Dynamic Win is interested. Mr. Xu Zhen Dong, Mr. Zhang Wan Zhong and Mr. Xu Zhi
Xiang (who replaced Ms. Liu Yue as a trustee on 9 May 2003 upon Ms. Liu’s resignation as a trustee on the
same date) are trustees holding 60, 20 and 20 shares out of 100 shares in the issued share capital of Heng
Huat.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, supervisors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 t0 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the employee share option scheme disclosures in note 27 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company granted to any director and supervisor or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved a share option scheme on 5 July 2000, pursuant to which the
board may, at its discretion, grant share option to any full-time employees of the Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the Company’s shares in issue at the
date of grant. However, employees who are PRC nationals shall not be entitled to exercise the option
until the current restrictions on PRC nationals from subscribing for or dealing in H shares imposed by
the relevant PRC law and regulations have been abolished or removed. No options have been granted
by the Company to any employees of the Group since the date of establishment of the share option
scheme.

21




22

Report of the Directors

;.| Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited * Annual Report 2004

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2004, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company (except for Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System which has only 3.38% and Asian

Technology investment Company Limited which has only 4.22%, respectively, of issued share capital

of the Company) were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name

Peking University

Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics
System Engineering Company

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited

Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech
Company Limited

Heng Huat

Dynamic Win

New World CyberBase Limited

New view Venture Limited

Asian Technology Investment

Company Limited

Notes

(@)

(a)

{a)

{a)

{a)

{6)

{c)

Capacity and

nature of interest

Through 3 controlled
corporation

Directly beneficially
owned

Directly beneficially
owned

Directly beneficially
owned

Directly beneficially
owned

Through a controlled
corporation

Directly beneficiaily
owned

Interest of controlled
corporation

Directly beneficially
owned

Directly beneficiatly

owned

Number of

ordinary

shares held

310,000,000

85,000,000

110,000,000

40,000,000

75,009,000

220,000,000

220,000,000

70,000,000

70,000,000

50,000,000

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company's
domestic
issued

share capital
44.28%
12.14%
15.71%
S.71%
10.71%
31.43%
31.43%
10.00%

10.00%

7.14%

Approximate

percentage

of the

Company's

issued

share capital

26.16%

717%

9.28%

3.38%

6.33%

18.57%

18.57%

591%

5.91%

4.22%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes:

(&) Peking University is taken to be interested in 26.16% of the total issued share capital of the Company
through the following companies:

(i 85,000,000 shares (representing approximately 7.17% of the Company’s share capital) held by
Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Company, which is beneficially wholly-
owned by Peking University;

(if) 110,000,000 shares (representing approximately 9.28% of the Company’s total share capital) held
by Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., which is beneficially wholly-owned by Peking
University;

(iii) 40,000,000 shares (representing approximately 3.38% of the Company's total share capital) held
by Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited, which is approximately 46% owned by Peking University; and

{iv) 75,000,000 shares (representing approximately 6.33% of the Company’s total share capital) held
by Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Company Limited, the board of which is controlled by
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited.

(b) The shares of the Company are held by Dynamic Win, which is 93.37% owned by Heng Huat.

(©) The shares of the Company are held by New View Venture Limited, which is wholly-owned by New World
CyberBase Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the directors and supervisors of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’, supervisors and chief executive's interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO.

COMPETING INTERESTS
None of the directors, supervisors, the management shareholders of the Company and their respective

associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Upon the listing of the H shares of the Company cn the GEM on 27 July 2000, transactions between
the Group and its connected persons or their respective associates (as the respective terms are defined
by the GEM Listing Rules) are governed by and are required to comply with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Group had the following connected transactions as recorded in its financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004:

RMB’000
(a) Sale of embedded systems products and provision of total solution services to:
Beijing Tiangiao Beida jade Bird Sci-Tech Company Limited 424
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited 239
(b) Rental expense for office building charged by Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited 976
() Interest income on amount due from Beijing Beida On-line Network
Company Limited 765
(d)  Purchase of a 100% equity interest in Beida Jade Bird Overseas Education Limited
from Hong Kong Jade Bird Sci-Tech Limited (note 29(a)) 413

(e) Disposal of a 20% equity interest in Beijing Silicon Innovation Company Limited to

Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microeclectronics System Engineering Company (note 29(b)) 1,200

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the above transactions and have confirmed
that:

1. the transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its
business;
2. the transactions were entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders

of the Company are concerned;

3. the transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms or, where there is no available
comparison, on terms no less favourable than those available from or to (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

4. the transactions were entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in compliance with Rules 5.23, 5.24 and
5.25 of the GEM Listing Rules, for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee has three members
comprising the three independent non-executive directors of the Company. An audit committee meeting
was held in March 2005 to review the Group’s 2004 annual report and provide advice and
recommendations to the board of directors.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company was in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to
5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2004, which applied before
the amendment of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and
Rule on Corporate Governance Report which took effect on 1 January 2005. The Company will
prepare a Corporate Governance Report in accordance with Rule 18.44 if the GEM Listing Rules for
the financial year ending 31 December 2005.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CN BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
XU ZHEN DONG
Chairman

Beijing, the Pecple’s Republic of China
30 March 2005
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To the Shareholders:

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Supervisors of the Supervisory Committee have strictly
complied with the requirements of the "Company Law of The People’s Republic of China”, "Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited” and the Articles of Asscciation of the Company and adhered to the principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging our supervisory duties and cbligations faithfully and safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders, the Company and its staff and be responsible to the shareholders.

During the year, two meetings of the Supervisory Committee were held:

(n The second meeting of the second session of the Supervisory Committee was held at the
conference room as the third floor of the Company on 24 March 2004. The agenda of the
meeting was the review of the report of the 2003 annual results of the Company.

(2) The third meeting of the second session of the Supervisory Committee was held at the conference
room on the third floor of the Company on 10 August 2004. The agenda of the meeting was
the review of the report of the 2004 interim resuits of the Company.

Moreover, the fourth meeting of the second session of the Supervisocry Committee was held at the
conference room on the third floor of the Company on 30 March 2005. The agenda of the meeting
was the review of the report of the 2004 annual results of the Company.

During the period of this Report, the Supervisory Committee was present at all the major activities of
the Company, such as the meetings of the Board of Directors and had discharged its supervisory
functions over the Board of Directors and its members and senior management, such as general
manager, deputy general managers, and the operations management of the Company.
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As a result of our work, the Supervisory Committee is in a position to express its independent opinion
in respect of the following matters:

1. The Supervisory Committee has verified the financial information such as the financial and
performance reports and the profit appropriations proposal to be submitted to the Annual
General Meeting by the Board of Directors in a serious manner. We are of the opinion that the
financial statements audited by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December 2004 have
reflected truly and fairly the conditions of the operating results and the assets of the Company
and of the Group.

2. The management of the Company was able to execute the affairs of the Company in accordance
with the “Company Law of The People’s Republic of China" and the Articles of Association of
the Company and establish a proper internal control system. During the period of this Report,
the Supervisory Committee has not discovered any act of the management, in the performance
of their duties, that prejudiced the interests of the Company and its staff, or contravened the
faws and regulations of the State and the Articles of Association of the Company.

3. During the year, the Company was not threatened with any major litigation nor was there any
matter that the Supervisory Committee had intervened with or threatened against the Board of
Directors.

4. The connected transactions of the Company, which have fully complied with the relevant

provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, were fair and reasonable. We have not discovered
any act that prejudiced the interests of the Company.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous supports given by the Shareholders,
Directors and all staff to the work of the Supervisory Committee during the year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Zhang Yong Li
Chairman

Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
30 March 2005
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

£ R & 8 F K

To the members
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liabifity)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 30 to 84 which have been prepared in accordance
with the.accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true
and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong
Kong fnstitute of Certified Public Accountants, except that the scope of our wark was limited as
explained below. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. However, the evidence made
available to us by the Group was limited because sufficient information and explanations necessary to
enable us to understand and assess the recoverability of the amounts due from related parties of
RMB320 million have not been available. Details of the amounts due from related parties are set out
in note 21 to the financial statements. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to understand and assess the recoverability of the aforesaid amounts due from related
parties.

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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QUALIFIED OPINION ARISING FROM LIMITATION OF AUDIT SCOPE

Except for any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary had we been able to obtain
sufficient evidence concerning the recoverability of the amounts due from related parties of
approximately RMB320 million, in our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation of our work relating to the recoverability of the amounts due from
related parties, we have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary
for the purpose of our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2005
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

i ‘ Year ended 31 December 2004

TURNOVER

Investment income, other revenue and gains

Operating expenses -
Materials and equipment

Employee costs

Depreciation ‘O_f property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill

Qther operating expenses

Total operating expenses

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Finance income/(costs)
Interest income

interest expense

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

Minority interests |

PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS

NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY AC.T‘IV‘IT'IES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

DIVIDENDS
I»nterir'n

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basi

¢ (RMB. cents)

_Notes -

13
14815

i

a2

2004 2003
RMB'000 © RMB'000"
130,503 199,740
293,535 1,877
(102,442) (148,037)
(18,406) (18,021)
(3,190) (3,203)
(5,886) (6,230)
(3,556) -
(47.379) (5.814)
(180,859) (185,305)
243,179 16,312
3,095 3,020
(11,328) (12,425)
234,946 6,907
(3,280) {2,399)
231,666 4,508
2,519 2,628
234,185 7,136
(11,848) -
222,337 7,136
20.4 0.7
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2004

: 2004 | i

“Notes’ ‘20_0"3";
. RMB000 |~ RAB'00D
NON-CURRENT ASSETS e o S T
Property, plant and equtpment PR B E SN 9,656 |. - 6319
Intangible assets P B T R 280 | . 520
Goodwill B o s 7333 |7 16535
Long term investment o 16 362,581 | 510,998
379,850 | . 534,372
‘CURRENT ASSETS _ T T
Inventories s Co a8 22,813 - 19,538
Trade receivables ‘ 19 27,578 | 71,915
Due from shareholders ) =207 43,781 31,328
Due from related parties - 21 381,753 25,374
Prepayments, deposits and cther recewables o R 8,641 . 25,793
Short term investments 22 2,000 | -
Bills receivable : - 8,726
Cash and cash eguivalents . co 23 322,066 278,009
_ 808,632 | 460,683
CURRENT LIABILITIES o S .
Short term bank loans - - 24 310,017 R 396,203
Trade payables .25 14,991 N 16,904
Advances from custamers T . 9,827 11,783
Accrued liabilities and other payables o L 22,212 23,794
Due to shareholders . S 200 1,261 1,692
Due to related parties B S L2 1,993 742
Tax payable SR 6313 | . 3,639
366,614 | - 454757
 NET CURRENT ASSETS 442,018 | 5926
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES '+ © 821,868 | . . 540,298
MINORITY INTERESTS 3470 | é,m31f_;
818,398 |-~ 534,167
CAPITAL AND RESERVES , Gl Ll
Issued capital S e 26 118,480 |° - 110,400
Reserves O 1Y 699,918 |.. - 423,767
v 818,398 | 534,167

XU ZHENDONG . . . ' “XU ZHIXIANG.
Director - - R - Director
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| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ended’31 December 2004

Issued Statutory
share Capital reserve Retained
Notes Capital reserve funds profits Total

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000 -

31 Dec‘embe'r 2002 and \
1 January 2003 i 96,400 251,271 16,649 77,503 441,823

" lssue of H shares 14,000 75,164 - - 89,164
Share issue expenses - (5,610) - - (5,610)
Payable written back* - 1,654 - - 1654
Net profit for the year - - - 7,136 S 7136
Transfer from/{to) reserves 11(1) - - 1,218 {1,218) -

31 December 2003 and

1 January 2004 110,400 322,479 17,867 83,421 534,167,
Issue of H shares . 26 8,080 56210 - - 64,290
Sﬁare issue expenses 26 - (2,396) - - '(2,396)
Net profit for the year - - - 234,185 234,185
Transfer to a capit‘a{ reservé ) - 1,427 - (1,427) -
Transfer from/(to) reserves 11¢1) - - 35,084 (35,084) -

*Interim dividend 11(2) - - - (11,848)  (11,848).

31 December 2004 118,480 377,720% 52,951# 269,2474 818,398

In 2003, the Company reached a wavier agreement with an unrelated party, who had provided services to

the Company during the listing of the Company’s H shares on the Growth Enterprise Market {the "GEM") . ‘

of The Stock Exchange of Hdng Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) in July 2000. Pursuant to the waiver
_agreement, the amount had been recorded as part of the issuance expenses for the listing in 2000 and in. .

accordance with the pr’evai/irig accounting principles and regulations in the People’s Republic of China, the LT

amount waived was included in the capital reserve account in 2003 accordingly.

(i) In the current year, Hebei Be_ida'./'ade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited ("Hebei Fire
: Alarm”), a subsidiary of the Company, reached an agreement with a bank to restructure a bank loan of -
RMB3,060,000. Pursuant to the agreement, Hebei Fire Alarm was allowed to settle the bank foan by.
certain of its property with a total carrying emount of approximately RMB1,158,000, leading to a gain of
approximately RMB1,802,000 recognised in the profit and loss account for the year. After taking into
" account minority interests and income tax effect, the net gain resulting from this debt restructuring : o
“attributable to the slhar'eho‘lders of the Company is approximately RMB96S,000 which is required to be’
transferred to- a capital reserve in accordance with PRC accounting principles and regulations. o

# These reserve accounts comprise the consofidated reserves of RMB699,918, 000 (2003: RMB423, 767,'000)‘
in the consclidated balance sheet. ‘
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEIV!ENT

Year ended 31 December 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVIT!ES
Profit from operatmg actlvmes
Adjustments for:

Exchange losses/(gains), net

Provision for/(write-back of) doubtful debts

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain of disposal of a business

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of long term investment
Gain on debt restructuring

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of goodwill

Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables -

Increase/(decrease) in bills receivable

increase in amounts due from shareholders:

Increase in amounts due from related parties”

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits.
and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase in advances from customers. . -

Increase in accrued liabilities and other: payables

Decrease in amounts dug to shareholders

lncrease/(decrease) in amounts due to: related pames

Cash used in operations
PRC corporate income tax paid'

Net cash outfiow from operating activities.

.

Oy D

29(c) ;
- 29(b)

3 O\

_ 2004 |5

.545.‘ o

RMB’000
243,179 16,312
864 (1,646)
34,534 (1,603)
338 336
1,246 719
- (1,362)
(1,254) -
(289,214) -
(1,902) -
3,190 3,203
5,886 6,230
3,556 -
423 £ 22,189
(8,452) (3.734)
9,667 . 2,637
8,726 (8,726)
(12,453) (21,956) ..
(355,179) (14,939)
8,130 (6,609).
(1,135) o
1,295 4,134
5,801 R
(431) L (9.612)
520 (1,558)"
(343,088) (36,057)
(606) (54)
S 36111)

Ol (3e3.694) |

4572
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. ,;,_Consohdated Gash Flow Statement

: erar ended 31 December 2004

ﬂ,'CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ;
'_Decrease/(mcrease) in bank deposns with matur\ty '

of over three months .

‘ HPurchases of oroperty, plant and eqmpment B R :'7'3
_-Purchase of a long term investment = R S o ;
“Purchases of a short term‘investmeni : . R g 22
© Acquisitions of a subsidiary . - o 29(a) o

Disposal of a subsidiary v 3 . 29()
Disposal of a long term investment 16
Interest received

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities

~ CASH 'FLOWSYFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of H shares ' ’ 26
Share issue expenses ' i 26
New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Dividend paid ”

Interest paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing ‘éctivyities_

" NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND -

© CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

- CASH:AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

‘AINALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH 'EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances ' I 23

Non-pledged time deposits with original matur:ty of

not longer than three months when acquired-’ 23 e

;. Notes

‘ 2004 2003
RMB ‘000 RMB'000
32,163 (92,941). -
(7,867) (983)

- ' (30)

(2,000) -

731 -
1,504 -
437,631 -
3,961 2,869
466,123 (91,085).
64,290 89,164
(2,396) (5,610)

- 393,143
(84,284) (360,000) -
(11,848) -
(11,407) (12,780)
(45,645) 103,817
76,784 (23,279)
88,322 109,955

(564) 1,646
164,542 88,322
101,739 82,977
62,803 5,345
164,542 88,322
—
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BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2004

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

‘Due from shareholders

Due from related parties

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Short term investments

Bills receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term bank loans

Trade payables

Advances from customers

Accrued liabilities and other payables
Due to shareholders

Due to a related party

Tax payable

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves

XU ZHEN DONG
Director |

Notes 2004 2003
E RMB'000 “RmE000
13 3,633 © 2,213
a7z 580,785 571,705
584,418 573918
18 2,149 5,714
o 9,460 48,947
20 42,781 31,328
21 59,755 24,006
‘ - 20,966
22 2,000 -
- 8,726
23 152,087 238,952
268,232 - 378,639
24 310,017 393,143
181 1,982
1,037 7,723
15,637 15,683
20 909 1,010
oare 465 355
' - 494
328,246 420,390
(60,014) - {41,751)
524,404 532,167
26 118,480 110,400
28 405,924 421,767
L 524,404 © 532,167

XU ZHF XIANG
Director
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| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 31 December 2004

* CORPORATE INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

E Beljing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the "Company”) was incorporated

as a'Sino~foreign joint stock limited liability company in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China

(the "PRC"), on 29 March 2000. The Company's H shares have been ||sted on the GEM of the

Stock Exchange since 27 July 2000.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "’Group“) were
engaged in the research, development, manufacturing, marketing and sale of embedded systems
pfoducts, including network security products (“NET"), wireless fire alarm systems ("WFAS”),
application specific integrated circuits ("ASIC”), global positioning system application systems
("GPS”), smart card application systems (“IC"), remote automatic metre-reading systems ("RMR")
and related products. The Group was also engaged in the sale of computer products
("Computer”) and the provision of total solution services through the application of its existing -
embedded system products during the year. ‘

In the oponlon of the d:rectors the ultimate controlling shareholder is Peking University, a.-

unlver5|ty in Beulng the PRC.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") "

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of new Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, herein collectively
referred to as the new HKFRSs, which are generally effective for accounting périods beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004,

The Group'is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs and

has so far concluded that the adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” would have the following significant effects.
According to this standard, long term investment of the Group will be classified as available-
for-sale financial asset which is measured at fair value instead of measuring at historical cost",

according to the existing accounting policy of the Group. Any adjustment of the previous.

carrying amount should be recognised as an adjustment of the balance of retained earnings at-A""‘
the beginning of the financial year in which the above standard is initially applied. As at 31

" December 2004, the fair value of the long term investment was hlgher than the hlstorlcal cost.

by approxumately RMBZSS rmll:on (note 16). The Group will-be continuing with the assessment ‘
of the lmpact of the other new HKFRSs and other significant changes may be |dent|f|ed asa
result. : : ‘
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

3. . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Basis of breparétion

These financial statements have been prepared in accorda_ncé wifh‘Hong Kor{g F,ihanci'a! Reporting
Standards (which also include Statements of Standard Accounting Préctice éndlhterpretations_}
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountar}tvs, aécounting printiples generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convent‘ion._

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2004. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or
disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation. ‘ v

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets of
the Company’s subsidiaries. ‘ . S »

Su’bsidiaries L SR

A subsud|ary is @ company whose financial and operatmg pohc1es the Company controls dnrectly
or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.’ ‘

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's profit and loss accbu_nt to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less any impairment losses. o ‘

Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if ane party has the ability, "directly or indifectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and

operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subje_d to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.
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| Notes to Financial Statements

.31 December 2004

; SSUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Ceont’'d)
Goodwill

" Goodwill arising on the acquismon of subsidiaries or busmess represehts the excess of thecost
of the acqursmon over the Group’s and'the Company's share of the fair vatues of the identifiable -
‘assets and liabilities acqulre_d 3s at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and balance |
sheet as an asset and amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

On disposal of subsidiaries or business, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to
the net assets at the date of disposal, including the attributabie amount of goodwill which

remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed
untess the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature
that was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events have occurred which have
reversed the effect of that event.

Impairment of assets

An - assessment is made at each balance’ sheet date of whether there is ahy |nd|cat|on of-
|mpa1rment of any asset or whether there is any mdlcat;on that an |mpaxrment loss prewously :
= recognised for-an asset in prior years may no Ionger e><|st or may have decreased If any such
- indication ex»sts the asset’s recoverable amount is estlmated An asset’s recoverable amount is
' calculated as the h(gher of the assets value in use or its net seng pr|ce

~An impairment Ioss is recogmsed only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable )
‘ amount An impairment Ioss is charged to the profit and loss account in the perlod in whsch |t‘ .
. arises. ) '

A previously recognised imApair'ment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
 estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreci'atbn/
amortisation), had no, impai'rrhent Joss been recognised for the asset in prior-years. A reversal‘af‘

an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. {Cont’d) ~

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumttl‘ated d'epréciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchése price Iar)d any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for'its intended 'use.i'Exbe'nditure
incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, su‘ch' as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the profit.and 'l'o,ssv'a'ccount in the petiod in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expendituvre‘has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an addititmal cost of that
asset. ;

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost-of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment have been
taken as follows: :

Leasehold land ' 10 years
Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements, furniture and office equipment 2-5 years
Motor vehicles : ~ 5 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a property, plant and equipment recognised in'the
profit and foss account is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying -
amount of the relevant asset. B ST ‘

Intangible assets

Information technology rights are stated at cost and amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of five years. o

Research and development costs
Al research costs are charged to the profit and.loss-account 'as_inéu'rr’ed._

Exp’enditu‘re incurred on‘projects to develop. new products is c'abpitétised"énd« d}efﬁerred'ﬁonty when ‘
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditute is separately i'dentittabl'e artd',vc'a'n bé measured .
reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the projects are teéhniéally feasibl‘é; and ttte products
have commercial value. Procuct development expenditure which doés not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred. ' R
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| Notes to Financial Statements

3% December 2004

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

“Long’term investments . .

- Long term investrments 'i‘n listed and unlisted equity securities, intended to be held for a continuing
strategic or fong term purpose are stated at cost less any lmpa[rment losses, on an individual
investment basis. ' :

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying amount has occurred, unless
there is evidence that the decline is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced
to its fair value, as estimated by the directors. The amount of the impairment is charged to the
profit and loss account for the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and events
which led to the impairment in value cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the
new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the
impairment previously charged is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the
amount previously charged.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of ’costAan'd net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work in prog_resé and finished goods, comprises
'direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value’
v“ls based on estimated selling prices less any estumated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal o

Contracts for services
Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs of
rendering services comprise labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing :

the services and attributable overheads.

Sl "Revenue from the rendermg of services is recognised based on the percentage of complenon of

“the transact»on provxded that the revenue, the costs. |ncurred and the estimated costs to~

completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established by referencef o

to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incufred under the transaction.
When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenues are recognised -
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are probable of recovery, and contract costsf g
'are recogmsed as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. '

Provision ié made fer 'fo,reseeab!‘e losses as soon as they are anticipated by ' management.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'dl ‘

Contracts for services {Cont’d)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised. profits'le‘ss'recog’nised losses' exceed
progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount'due to contract customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cashtavnd caéh eoui\'/alents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an »i'n‘si.gnificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within thte"e‘ months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an mtegral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents comptlse cash on hand and at
banks, including time deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use. o '

Provisions

A provision is recognnsed when a present obllgatlon (legal or constructlve) has arlsen as aresult .
of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be- requlred to settle .
the oblngatlon prowded that a rellable estlmate can be made ot the amount of the obhgat\on
When the effect of diséountlng is material, the ar'n'o‘unt.recogni:sed for‘ acorov‘i'slon is the .
present value at the balance sheet date of the future expendltures exoected td be required to ..
settle the obligation. The increase in the discountad present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the profit and loss account.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss

- account, or in equity if it relates to items that are recogn\lsved in the same or & different period
directly in equity. '
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Notes to Financial Statements

ol 3 1 Decem ber 2004

éUMMARY Of SIGN'IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Ihcome tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the-initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* . in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax assets and unused losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unu_sed o
tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised: ’

» - except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accountmg
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* - inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in. subsidi‘aries,“"' B

deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that tempor'a"r'y, - L
differences er reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit wrl be avai labte
: 'agamst whrch the temporary drfferences can be utrlrsed ‘

' The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets is revrewed at each balance sheet date and reduced ‘
to the extent that'it'is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profrt will be available to allow'_‘
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred‘
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be .
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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31 Decemnber 2004

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)‘
Revenue recbygnition

Revenue is recognlsed when it is probable that the economlc benefuts Wl” ﬂow to the Group B

and when the revenue can be measured rehab!y on the followmg bases

(a)

from the sale of embedded systems and related products, when the ilnstalvlat‘ion work is
completed, the customer has accepted the syétéms énd produvcts anld:the vsignifvicant risks
and rewards of ownership have been tra_nsferred to the cuétomer,‘ provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the embedded syéterhs and related hroducts sold;

from the sale of computer products, when the merchandise is shipped, the title of which
has passed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the computer products
sold;

from the rendering of total solution services, on the basis as set out under the heading
“Contracts for services” above; '

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue is recorded net of sales surtaxes, where applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqu;smon construcﬂon or product:on of qual|fy|ng -
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily také a substantial pernod of time to get ready for’ thE|r"
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capltahsanon of =

such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantlally ready for their intended usé or

sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrbwings pending-

their éxpenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs Ac‘apitlalise'd.
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Notes to Financial Statements

3 1 December 2004

- 'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
. Dividends.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the capital and reserves section of the balance sheet, until they have been
aporoved by the sharehotders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved ‘
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a fiability.

Foreign currencies

t’he books and records of the Group are maintained in Renminbi ("RMB"). Foreign currency
“transactions are recorded at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
' Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are

translated at applicable exchange rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with

in the profit and loss account. ‘

On consohdatmn the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
using the net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries are
vtranslated into RMB. at the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their balance
sheets are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into RMB at the axchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently '
“recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated .
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. '

" Operating .leaeeé

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable to such operating leases are
charged to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Short term investments

~ Short term mvestments are investments in equity securities held for trading purposes and'are.

' stated at their fair values on the basis of thesr quoted market prices at the balance sheet date,
on anm individual mvestment basis.. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value ofa
'securlty are credited or charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 Decenber 2004-

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Employee benefits
" Retirement benefits schemes

The Company and its PRC subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the local government authorities. in the PRC. All of the PRC employees are entitled
to an annual pension equivalent to a fixed portion of their__bja'sic‘ salaries at théir retirement
dates. The Company and its PRC subsidiaries are requiréd to make centvribufions to the retirement
schemes at a rate of 20% of the basic salaries of their PRC employees and have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits. The contributions are char'ged to the profit and loss
account of the Group as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. ‘

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund ‘retirer"nent benefits scheme
(the "MPF Scherhe") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordiha_nc‘e, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently adminis’.tered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF S’cheme..»

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under the share option scheme is not recorded in the
Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are exercised, ‘and no
charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or balance sheet fo‘r”‘;heir cost. Upon the
exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued: are recorded by the'Comp‘any as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share -
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company m the capital reserve account‘ '
Options which are cancelled prior to thelr exercise date or wh|ch lapse are deleted from. the '
register of outstanding options. S B S
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‘_‘.QSEGMENT INFORMATION‘
Segment xnformatlon is presented by way of two segment formats (i) on a prumary segment
= 'reportlng baS|s by busmess segment and (i) on a secondary segment repomng basis, by
‘geographical segment. ‘
The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately, according to the '
nature of their aperations and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
business segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other business segments.
Summary details of the business segments are as follows:
(a) = the manufacture and sale of NET
(b  the manufacture and sale of WFAS
(¢}’ the manufacture and sale of ASIC
(d}  the manufacture and'sale of GPS
(e)  the manufacture and sale of IC
S(h . the manufacture and sale of RMR
() the trading of Computer

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments

based on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the-"'f .

location of the assets.

intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the sell mg prices used for .

-. 'Vsales made to thlrd partnes at the then preva||1ng market pnces
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(a) Business segments

The followmg tables present revenue, proflt/(loss and certam asset
expenditure mformation for the Group's business segments

liability and

Group . .
a 2004 w
RMB'000
NET WFAS ASIC GPs i RMR  Computer Total

REVENUE
Sales to external customers 9,430 44,244 15,434 - 106 420 50,863 130,503
RESULTS
Segment results (4,325) 7,302 87 - 39) (2,390) 362 1,697
investment income and

unallocated gain 289,21¢
Interest income 3,095
Interest 2xpense {11,328)
Unallocated corporate

expenses (47,732)
Profit before tax 234,946
Tax (3,280}
Profit before minority

interests 231,666
Minority interests 1,519
Net profit from erdinary

activities attributable

to shareholders 234,185
ASSETS
Seqment assets 16,766 45,007 558 1,019 n 3035 492,520 558,932
Less: Intersegment assets - - - - - - {96,460)  (96,460)
Unallocated corporate

assets 725,960
Total assets 1,188,482
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 4,112 28,110 - 1,064 49 4,437 19,108 56880 | . ..o
Less: Intersegment fiabilities (186} {13,507) - - - (499) - (14,192) +
Unaflocated corporate

fiahilities, 123,926
Total liabilities 366,614
OTHER SEGMENT

INFORMATION
Capital expenditure 92 5234 - - - - 1,54 7,867
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 504 1,748 293 40 1 38 565 3,19
Amortisation of goodwil 439 3,500 - - - 1,707 - 5,646
Amortisation of intangible

assets - - 240 - - - - P
impairment of goodwill - - - - - 3,556 - 3,556
Provision foriwrite-back of)

doubtful dedts, net 29,9 2,631 m - 515 1,456 {260) 34,534
Provision against osolete

and slow-moving

inventories - - - - - 338 - 338 :
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j""jjg"‘SEG_.ME‘NT‘ INFORMATION (Cont’d)

b"(a)‘ Business segments (Coht’d)

Group
2003
RMB'000
NET WFAS ASIC GPS IC OVR RMR  Computer Total

REVENUE
Sales o external custorners 36,060 31,077 98,151 - 2,730 1,212 89 70421 199,740
RESULTS
Segment results 15,780 3,583 (2,165) (193) 1,430 477 (1,428) 3174 20,708
Interest income ‘ ‘ 3,020
Interest expense (12,425)
Unallocated corporate : _ ’ R

expenses : ‘ . . . (4,396)
Profit before tax . k 6,907
Tax. . L : ) ] ) {2,399)
Profit before minority interests 4,508

Minority interests : ) 2,628

Net profit from ordinary
activities attributable

o shareholders. : ' _ ' 7,136
ASSETS .
Segment assets ‘ 46,524 34802 36234 967 981 - 5853 44,005 169,368 - -
Less: Intersegment. assets - - {7,180} - - - - - {7,180)
Unaflocated: corporate-assets. o ' _ 832,869 .
Total assetss - : ‘ T 995,055
LIABILITIES . B
Segment liabilities ) 5842 27422 18,212 1,757 139 - 4,867 14499 72738
Less: Interseament liabilities (175)  {(13.549)  {2,783) - - - (600) - {170
Unallocated carporate liabilities ' 399,126
Total fiabilities . o 454,757 °
- OTHER SEGMENT .-
. INFORMATION . - _ o
_Capital expendite 87 w5 139 - - e - PR T
Depreciation of property; ) : . ) S . ,_‘
lant and equipment . . 461 462 1565 40 10 56 44 565 3203 o
Amortisation of goodwil 43% 3500 - - - M3 1708 - - 05990 .
Amortisation of intangibie assets - - 240 - - - - - 40 )
Provision forf{write-back of).
daubtiui debts, net (62) 116 418 - {50) (203) 135 (1,957} (1,603) .
Provision against obsolete and- :
stow-moving inventories 222 - - - 114 - - - 336
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

by Geographical segvm‘ent‘s :

| The followmg table presents revenue and certaln asset and capntal expendnture mformatlon
 for the Group's geographmal segments: ’ "

Group " 'Mainland Chinav Hong Kong - Total

( 2004 ) 2003 2004) 2003 " 2004) . 2003
RMB’000 | RMB’000| RMB’000 | RMB'000| RMB'000 | AMB’000
REVENUE
Sales to external
customers 100,220 155,994 30,283 | 43,746 130,503 199,740
OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Segment assets 1,173,846 987,628 14,636 7,426 1,188,482 995,055
Capital expenditure 7,867 983 - - 7,867 . 983

Ne— —
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TUMRN‘OVER, INVE'STMENT INCOME, OTHER. REVENUE AND, GAINS
Turnover represents the net rnvorced value of goods sold after allowances for returns and tradef
intra-group transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

An analysis of turnover, investment income, other revenue and gains is as follows:

Group
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'C00 .
" Turnover o ‘
Sale of embedded systems and releted products 77,206 114,926
Sale of computer products 50,869 70,421
Rendering of total solution services 2,428 14,393
130,503 199,740
Investment income
Gain on disposal of long term investment (note 76) 289,214 -
Other revenue ‘ -
Gross rental iricome {note 32(b)) ‘ - 315
Others ' 1,165 200
1,165 515
Gains . .
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 29(b)) 1,254 -
Gain on debt restructvuring'f : 1,902 ) -
‘Gain on disposal of a business (note 29(c)) _ - 1.362
3,156 1,362
293,535 1,877
* in the current year,'HebeilFire Alarm, a subsidiary of the Company, reached an agreement with a’

bank to restructure a bank loan of RMB3,060,000. Pursuant to the agreement, Hebei Fire Alarm
was allowed: to settle the bank loan by certain of its property with a total carrying amount of
approximately RMB1, 158,000, leading to a gain of approxrmarely RMB1,902,000 recognised in the:
profit and /oss account for fhe year. ‘

g »dlscounts and the value of services rendered net of sales surtaxes durrng the year. All 519nlfrcant o
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PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s profit from opetating,ectivitie_svi’se:rri’ve'd at ‘aAf»‘ter ct‘ta_tg‘i‘ng/(vcired_iting}:; N

- Notes™ .

Cost of inventories sold
Cost of services provided, and which mcluded
Employees costs

Depreciation of property, ptant and equtpment.

Office expenses -
Others ‘ : S
Employees costs (excluding directors’ and.
supervisors’ remuneration); ‘
Wages, salaries and bonuses
Social security costs
Retirement benefit contributions
Auditors’ remuneration :
Depreciation of property, plant and equtpment
Research and development costs
Advertising and promotion ¢osts
Exchange gains/(fosses), net
Interest expense on bank loans wholly repayable _
within one year
Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income on an amount due from a
related party
Operating lease rental income in respect of
equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a business
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Amortisation of goodwill »
Amortisation of intangible assets -
lmpanrment of goodwill.

‘Operatmg lease rentals in respect of

Land and buildings.
Equlpment

Provision against obsolete and slow movmg
inventories

Research and development costs included:
Employees costs - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equtpment‘
Operating lease rentals of eqmpment
Office expenses - : :
Others

13

32(b) .

3208)

29(c)

29(b) .

SR

S P
s

B
Provision for/(write-back of) doubtful debts net v

8

- 32(0)

147,850 .

3.

2004 ‘2003
RMB'000 . RMB'000
102,307
1,301 417
279 516
9 4
303
13,575 12,837
1,676 2,041
852 1,251
954 956
3,190 3,203
6,177 6,936
4,498 4,360
864 (1,646)
11,328 12,425
(2,330) (2,255)
(765) (765)
- (315)
1,246 719
- (1,362)
(1,254) -
5,646 5,990
240 240.
3,556 -
1,997 2,340
- 315 -
34,534 (1,603)
338 335
4,278 3,427
707 2,044
- 315
692 | 617
- 500 | 533
—D
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% 7. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
';."[::)uring the year ended 31 December 2004, the aggregate contributions of the Gr‘oup to‘i_ts' ‘
retirement benefit schemes were approximately RMB852,000 (2003: RMB1,251,000). As at 31
December 2004, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its contri‘butions
to the pension schemes in future years (2003: Nil).
8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration:

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, as required to be disclosed pursuant ‘
to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
T 2008 )
2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB 000
Fees 350 500
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other allowances
and benefits in kind 1,052 1,092
Bonuses * 900 300
Retirement bénefits. scheme contributions 4 -
2,306 1,882
N —
* “The b‘dndséslwerépa»‘d t6 executive directors and calculated at approximately 0.4% (2003: '

4.0%) of the consolidated net profit from- ordinary activities attributable to shareholders

before the provision of such bonuses. Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between

‘the Company and its executive directors, the Company’s executive directors are entitled ro'
an aggregate amount of bonuses of not more than 5% of the consolidated prof/t after tax ‘
- but before the provision of such bonuses

. The tour executwe d(rectors of the Company received emoluments of approximately
_ VRM8649 000, RM8599 000, RI\/IBSSS 000 and nil for the year ended 31 December 2004,
- and the. twe executwe directors received emoluments of apprommately RMB432 000,
\ RM8382 OOO RMB343,000, RMB235,000 and nil for the year ended 31 December 2003 .

The five non-executive directors of the Company received individual fees of RMBS50,000
- each for the year ended 31 December 2004. One of the non-executive directors of the

Company received an individual fee of RMB50,000 and the remaining eight non-exécutive -

directors of the Company received individual fees of RMB25,000 each for the year ended
37 December 2003.
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8.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION: (Cont'd)

(a) Directors” and supervisors’ remuneration: (Cont'd)’ .

The five supervisors of the Company received emoluments of approximately RMB30,000
each for the year ended 31 December 2004. The seven supervisors of the Company
received emoluments of épproximately RMBE0,000,,RMB3_O’,OOQ, RMB30,000, RMB 15,000,
RMB15,000, RMB15,000 and RMB15,000 for the yeé’r ended 31 Décembgr 2003.

The three independent non-executive directors received individual fees of approximately
RMBSQ,000, RMB50,000 and nil for the yeé.r"_ended 31 December 2004, and the two
independent non-executive directors received individual fees of approximately R‘MBYSO,OOO‘
each for the year ended 31 December 2003.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a supervisor waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

There was no emolument paid by the Group to the directors and_supefvisors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or.as compensation for loss of office
during the year. ‘ ' '

(b)  Five highest paid 'empi‘oyees':

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2003: three) executive ,
directors, details of whose remuneration are alsc set out in the directors” and supervisors’
remuneration in (a) above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid employeéé E

are as follows:

. Group. -
( 2004 Y. : 2003 -
RMB‘000 |- RMB'000

Basic salaries, housing benefits, other‘allowance‘s o

and benefits in kind B 2,052 | 1,817
Bonuses , R 900 | .= . 2250
Retirement benefits scheme contributions - . . . 16 S gl
2,968 |. . 2,05t
NSl
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3 “ DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
o (‘b)‘ " Five highest paid employees: (Cont'd)

There was no emoltiment paid by the Group to the employees as an inducement to join
or upon jeining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year.

The remuneration of each of the highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2004 fell within the band of nil to RMB1,060,000 (equivalent to Hong Kong dollars
1,000,000).

9. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2003: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations, and practices
in respect thereof.

Group _

T sond ) :

2004 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000

" Current -
' - Hong Kong - -
- Mainland China ' 3,280 2,399

Total tax charge for the year ‘ 3,280 2,399
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9, TAX (Cont'd)

A reconclliafion of the tax"expense applicable to proflt before tax using the statutory ravtesi"f.or

the locations in which the Company and its subsidiaries are srtuated to the tax expense at the .

effective tax rates and a reconciliation. of the appllcable rates (| e.. the statutory tax rates) to
- effective tax rates are as follows

Group
é 2004 h 2003
RMB'000 % RMB"OOO %

Profit before tax 234,946 6,907 .
Tax at the statutory tax rate 77,532 33.0 2,280 33.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces

or local authority (268) (0.1) (1,695) (24.5)
Income not subject to tax (95,441) (40.6) (330) {4.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax 898 0.4 985 14.3
Tax exemptions (134) (0.1) (1,036) (15.0)
Benefit from operating fosses not ,

recorded 20,693 8.8 2,195 31.7
Tax charge at the Group’s effectiye ’ o

rate " EEE 3,280 14 | 2399 347

The Company is reg stered in the Beulng Nevv Technology Enterprrse Development Zone and has
been certified by the relevant PRC authorities as & high technology enterprlse Pursuant to the
Income Tax Law in the PRC the Company is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 15%.
in accordance with an approval document issued-by the relevant tax bureau, the Company has
been granted mcome tax exemptron for the three years ended 31 December 2002 and 50%
reductron in corporate mcome tax for the three years endmg 31 December 2005

- Beijing Jade Bll’d Haodl Electrxc System Company lelted ("Jade Brrd Haodl”) is reglstered in the - :

- Bemng New Technology Enterprlse Development Zone and has been certified by the relevantf
PRC authorities as a high technology enterprise. Pursuant to the Income Tax Law in the PRC,
Jade Bird Haodi is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 15%. In accordance with an
approval document issued by the relevant tax bureau, Jade Bird Haodi was granted income tax
exemption for the three years ended 31 December 2000 and 50% reduction in corporate
income tax for the three years ended 31 December 2003. From 1 January 2004 onwards Jade
Bird Haodi is subject to income tax at a rate of 33%.
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TAX (Con{'d)

T As at 31 December 2004, the Group had an aggregate amount of provision for doubtful debts
" and provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories of approximately RMB38,226,000. '

Deferred tax assets have not been }ecognised in respect of these provisions as adequate future .
taxable profit available aga'in_s_t_ which-these deductible temporary differencesican_be‘ utilised is..
beyond reasonable doubt. ‘ ' '

. At:31 December 2004‘ there was no significanf unrecdgr\ised‘ deferred tax liability (2003: Nii)‘

for taxes that would be payab!e on the unremitted eammgs of certain of the Groups subsidiaries,

_ vas the dlrectors do not have mtentlon to rem|t such earnmgs to the Company in the foreseeable .

future.
NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholiders for the year ended 31 December

2004 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was approximately RMB57,809,000
(2003: net profit of RMB9,091,000) (note 28). ‘
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11.

PROFIT APPROPRIATIONS

(H

Under the PRC Company Law and the respective comoat\iés" articies of association, the

net profit after tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements prepared in

accordance with PRC accounting prmmptes and, regulattons can’ only be distributed as

dividends after allowance has been made for the following:

(i

(i}

(iif)

(iv)

Making up prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

Allocations to the statutory common reserve fund of at least 10% of profit after

tax, until the fund aggregates 50% of the Companys reg|stered capital Fer the
purpose of calculating the transfer to this reserve, the proflt after tax shall be the

amount determined under PRC accounting pr_mc;ples ar_t_d regulations. The transfer

to this reserve must be made before én’y distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The statutory common reserve fund 'can be USed to offset prior years' losses, if

‘any, and part of the statuto'ry common reserve fund can be capitalised as the

Company’s share capital provided that theé amount of such reserve remaining
after the capitalisation shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital of the
Company. '

Allocations of 5% to 10% of proflt after tax, as determmed under PRC accountmg
principles and regulations, to the Company’'s statutory public welfare fund, which
will be established for the purpose of prowdmg collectlve welfare benefits to the
Company's employees such as the constructlon of dormitories, canteens and other

staff welfare facilities. The fund torms part of the shareholders’ equtty as individual -~

employees can only use these facilities, while the title of which- will remain with
the Company. The transfer to this fund must be made before any dlstrtbutmn of
dividends to shareholders.

Allocations to the discretionary reserve fund if app:ro’ved' by the shareholders. The

discretionary reserve fund can be used to offset prlor years losses |f any, and ‘

capttahsed as the Companys share capfta!
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12.

“ PROFIT APPROPRIATIONS

(2)  Dividend

An interim dividend of RMB11,848,000 (RMB1 cent pér share) was declared and paid in.
12004 (2003: Nil). ‘ '

The board of directors do not recommend the payment of a finval dividend (2003: Nib).

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, the net profit after tax of ‘

the Company for the purpose of profit distribution will be deemed to be the lesser of (i)
the net profit determined in accordance with PRC accounting principles and regulations,
and (i} the net profit determined in accardance with Hong Kong accounting standards.

Cash d’ividend'to shareholders in Hong Kong will be paid in Hong Kong dollars.

FRREN

" EARNINGS PER SHARE"

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit from ordinary activities
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2004 of RMB234,185,000 (2003:
RMB7,136,000), and the weighted average of 1,146,828,415 (2003: 1,032,273,973) ordinary
shares in issues during the year as reflected in the new placement of H shares during the year.

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the current year’s basic earnings per

share includes 1,104,000,000 shares issued from the beginning of 2004 to 20 June 2004 and - 07
the new placement of 80,800,000 H shares by the Company on 21 June 2004. '

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December 2004 has not been
disclosed as no diluting events existed during the year.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND £QUIPMENT
Group
Leaseh:a\d” :
K }mpr'ovements;
. : Mach'\net{ turniture B
Leaschold - Sad otfice Moto! ‘Constm'ction»
tand guildings squipment equipment ¢ yehicles in pm‘qresé Total
7 e — e —
RMB1000 AME'000 RMB'000 AMEQ0D RMB 000 Rm_a‘eoa‘ ~ amB'000
LEL W fit : . S
ot : ‘ S
ALY Yanuary 2004 216 1343 13,403 3,282 1062 oo 30306
Additions - 16 o8 ) 3430 7861
Disposal of & subsidiary ' ' » ’ '
inote 2800} - (150} T - (s} -
D'\sgosa\s {216} e {1,380 { wmn - 3.0
Y e o -
A 31 Decembes 2004 1277 21,81 3490 3139 343 34,893
pecumulated depraciation’ o
st 1 fenvary 2004 3] 153 10,49 7,553 Tl 13.987
orpuited duing e YE2( R 465 1335 - o . B o 3190
D\spog\oﬁaaubs’ad\aw o N ’ ' T O B
(note 29000 o - (56Y - SIS SRR B AR
Disposals {70} 563 (A,168Y . KEaUE A e {1884 R
ot 31 December 2004 R 55 10,604 T Tewm O :
ek book value: ‘ EER o
At 31 Decembes 2004 - 11 i 114 1758 349 956
et 2003 e 200 912 s YRR £319

» A 31 Dece
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Leasehald
improvements,
Machinery  furniture and
and - office - Motor
Buildings equipment equipment . ‘vehicles Total
- RmB000 RMB'000 RMBO00  RMB'000 RMB'000
) (i) and (ii} {it) ‘

o Cost: - oo o S
. At 1January 3008 CeTs o 20307 0 3082 419 24,656
Additions " - - 74 10 21,496 2,580
Disposals - {6) - - (6)
At 31 December 2004 878 20,375 3,062 2,915 27,230

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2004 93 19,546 2,460 344 22,443
Piovided during the year | 42 431 338 348 1,159
Disposals - .- : (s) - - (5)
At 31 December 2004 135 19,972 2,798 692 23,597
Net book value:
At 31 December 2004 743 403 264 2,223 3,633

At 31 December 2003 785 761 592. 75 2,213

'(i):f The Group s /easeho/d land and a building with an aggregate net book value of
©* /RMB994,200 (2003 RMB1, 144,000) are located in Zhuo Lu Heber Province; the PRC,
" and are held under a /and usé right for a period of 40 years up to 31 December 2041, .
‘The other buildings wrth net book values of RMB668,000 (2003: RMB710,000) and' _
. RMB380,000 (2003 RMB4OO 000) are located in Beijing and Wuhan, the PRC, respectively. ..
As. of the date of these financial statements, the building ownersh/p certificates. of h
Certain buildings with an aggregate net book value of RMB380,000 have yet to be
obtained. The directors of the Company are of the view that the Group is entitled to
lawfully and va/zdly occupy and use the above-mentioned butldmgs The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the aforesaid matter will not have any srgmf/cant
impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2004

-‘(ii)"t As at 31 December 2004, the Group did not have any buildings, machinery and equipment
’ pledged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities. As at 31 December 2003, the
Group's buildings, machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book value of
approximately RMB1,097,000 were pledged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities

(note 24).
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14,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets comprising information technology righté are as fbll'oqv\/sf\ '

Cost:
At 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2004
Provided during the year

At 31 December 2004

Net book value:
At 31 December 2004

At 31 December 2003

‘ ‘ Grouﬁ
RMB'000

1,200

680
240

920

280

520
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.. GOODWILL

U The ‘ar‘n‘ount'of goﬁdWilI capitalised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet, ari'sing from

the acquisiticn of subsidiaries, is as follows:

Group
RMB'000
Cost: ‘ , ,

At 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004 ’ - : 28,231
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: .
At 1 January 2004 : 11,696
Amortisation provided during the year 5,646
impairment provided during the year 3,556
At 31 December 2004 _' . ) 20,898

Net book value: ) » . o .
‘At 31 December 2004 L o e .. 7,333
At 31 December 2003 ’ " 16,535

The amoeunt of goodwill is stated at its cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment of
RMB3,556,285 provided in 2004.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

o Group

( 2004 )} . 2003

RMB000 RMB'000 .

Listed equity investment, at cost: . : » ‘ ‘
Hong Keng * = © - . 362,581 | .- .-
Unlisted equity investment, at cost ‘V*U o - ] 510,998

Ma‘rketv value of Iist'ed:'équ'it‘y invésftjm‘e,nt'ihcl‘uded

- aboveaticost - T S . - : 647,546 -

N—
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16.

'LONG TERM INVESTMENT (Cont'd)

Long term investment consists of a listed equity investment, at cost. The directors are of the

opinion that the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing International Cerporatibn (“SMIC™),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, is to be held for long term purposes and as
such, continues to be carried at historical cost as at 31 December 2004.

In 2001, the Group acquired 54,000,540 Series A preference Shares (with voting rights and

being convertible into ordinary shares) which were converted and then s_elit i‘nte 540,005,400
ordinary shares, and acquired 54,000,540 non-voting, non-cdnvertible an‘d'.hon-transferabie
Series A-1 preference shares of SMIC, for a cash consideration of US$60 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB497 million) and US$540 (equiValent to approximately RMB4,500), respectively.
The principal activities of SMIC and its subsidiaries are the manufacturing and marketing of

advanced technology semiconductors in the PRC. Upon the initial public offering (the “iPO") of B

SMIC in March 2004, among the 540,005,400 ordinary shares held by the ‘Group, a total
number of 156,842,000 ordinary shares with the carrying amount of approximately RMB148
million were sold by the Group at a price of HK$2.69 per ordinary share, giving rise to a net
proceeds of approximately RMB437 million and a gain on disposal‘of long term investment of
approximately RMB289 million. Subseguent to the aforesaid disposal of SMIC’S ordinary shares,
the Group still holds 383,163,400 ordinary shares of SMIC. - -

As at 31 Decémber 2004, as agreed among the Group, SMIC and its certain shareholders upon '
the IPO of SMIC in March 2004, out of the Group’s total shareholding in SMIC of 383,163,400 -
ordinary shares, 302,162,590 cordinary shares were. subject to respective Iock up penods-
(restricting the public sale of the Group’s holding in SM\IC) detalls of wh|ch are set out below: -

L _Shareholding of',-‘

Lock-up period expiring: L ' o ' o f Cn _~‘VSM.I‘C shares.

In March 2005 ) e 81,000,810 shares
In September 2005 . Co 0w 81,000,810 shares

In March 2006 | U 181,000,810 shares.

in August 2006 S 759,160,160 shares

3'02,162,590 shares

Upon the expiry of the respective lock-up pertods the relevant SMIC ordlnary shares will be
available for pubhc trading.

* SMIC was listed durmg 2004 and hence /nvestment in SM/C changed from un//sted
equity investment in 2003 to listed equity mvestment in 2004. :
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_ INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2004 2003
RMB"000 RMB'000
Equityinterests, atcost L RS ER 22,933 27,433
Due from subsidiaries .. - . : ST 561,408 551,452
Due to a subsidiary . - (7,180)
584,341 571,705
Provision for impairment S , (3,556) -
580,785 571,705
J

The balances with subsndnartes at 31 December 2004 were mterest -free, unseCUred and did not
have fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 are as follows:

" Percentage’ of

Placeof ' R SR equity ‘tntevrest

incarporation/ SN AT S directly

‘ establishment -~ Nominal value of .~ attributable to
. Name. . -and operations Legal status r'egistered-i_c_apitél' " the Company  Principal activities
Cﬁymén Development Cayman lslands/  Limited hability - . USSTO',OOO 100%  Technology research,

Hong Kong Compay , development and - .
SITERTRI ' 5 sale of integrated
circuits, computer B
products and—:. L _,
! related‘p‘rodttcts,'»,ij .

" Hebei Beida Jade Bird o Hebei‘-.thjvince‘,.:' Limited lizbility 'RMB_]O‘,OOQ‘,OOO‘ CUUa U 75% . Technology resedich,
CUnversal Fre Mlarm < thePRC - company - o Ca i development,”
Device Compeny Limited” - R T T manufacture and -

sale of f tre alarm-
system products '
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. 17.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES {Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Name ' and operations

Jade Bird Haodi Beijing, the PRC

Wuhan Beida Jade Bird Wuhan, the PRC
Netsoft Company Limited
("Wuhan Netsoft")

Cayman Investment Cayman Islands/

Hong Kong
Beida Jade Bird Overseas British virgin

Education Limited Islands/Hong Kong

* Indirect helding

Legal status

Limited liability

company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability

company

Limited liability

company

Nominal value of

registered capital

RMES,000,000

RMB10,000,000

Us$100-

550,000

© Percentage of

- equity interest

directly -

“attributable to 4

v the Company .

" 51%

51%

100%¢

100%*

Principal activities

Development,
manufacture and

‘ sal-e of remote
automatic
metre-reading

systems

© " Research,
_ development,
production and

sale of network

management products,

. and provision of the

network systems
- integration services

Investment holding

" Investment hr‘)lding'
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INVENTORIES =
CGroup ... | Tl " Company

(2008 2003 2004 ) 2003

RMB’000 | . RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’OOO

Raw materials - . 5406 | . 3,305 785 | 537

Work in progress ‘ 1.560 ' 3,844 588 601
Finished goads ="~ 16,729 | 12,933 1320 5.120
23,695 20,082 2,693 6,258

Less: Provision against obsolete .
and slow-moving inventories (882) (544) (544) (544)

22,813 19,538 2,149 | . 5714,
K ,\’ s r \ J
The carrymg amount of mventorles (the Group and the Company) carrted at net reallsable value
lnctuded in the above balance was nil (2003 RMB5,657, OOO) as at the balance sheet date.

19.  TRADE RéCElVABLEs |

~The Groups tradmg terms wwth its. customers are mamly on credlt except for new customers,
where payment in advance is sometimes required. The credit-period generally ranges from three
10 siX months startlng from the date on which the significant risks and rewards of ownership
‘of products were transferred by the Group to customers or the’ date ot completton of services
o ,.prowded or the payment due date as defnned in the contracts wh|chever us the later. Each“
-'customer has a maxrmum credtt fimit. The group seeks 10 marntam strict control over its
outstandmg recetvables and has a credtt control department to mmrmnse credlt risk. Overdue .
bafances are rewewed‘regularly by senior manager_'nent U '
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Grovup as at the balanceﬁsheet date, based’oh t
the date on which the significant risks and rewards of ‘owher'ship of p}odu'cts were transferred

by the Group to customers or the date of completioh ofisvervic/es‘ prov'id‘ed or the payrrﬁent due
date as d_efined in the contracts, whichever is the later, is as fol||OWSI. . L

.Group -

o 2004 ) 2003
RMB'000 | .  RMB'000

Outstanding balances aged:
0 to 3 months : 13,195 T 33,275
3 to 6 months 11,260 | , 15,223
6 to 12 months 4,328 17,851
Over 12 months 36,139 8,376
64,922 74,725
Less: Provision for doubtful debts o (37,344) ‘(2,810)
27,578 o 71,915

N

Included in the trade receivables of the Group are the‘following amounts due from a shareholder
and related parties which are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to independent
third party customers: ‘ '

. -
2004 |

_ 2003
RMB’000 'RMB’000
Amount due from a shareholder (note 32(/7)) PR e - ) | 152
Amounts due from related parties (note 32(h)) : 207 o 129 -
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21

'A 31 December 2004

, EALANCES WITH SHAREHOLDERS

" The-balances with shareholders at 31 December 2004 were interest-free, unsecured and did -
‘not have fixed repayment terms.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an aggregate amount of balances due from shareholders

of approximately RMB41,000,000 has been received by the Group.
BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Except for the amount due from Beijing Beida On- fine Network Company Limited (“Beida On-

“line”) which bears interest at an annual interest rate of 5.13%, all other balancés with related

parties at 31 December 2004 were interest-free. All balances with related parties were unsecured -

‘and did not have fixed repayment terms.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an aggregate amount of balances due from related
parties of approximately RMB92,000,000 has been received by the Group.

included in the amounts due from related parties as at 31 December 2004 was a sum of |
approximately RMB320 million, representing approximately RMB287 million as to Hong Kong '
Jade Bird Sci-Tech Limited and approximately RMB33 million as to Wisdom New Group Limited,

both of which are controlled by Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (“Beida Jade Bird"). Pursuant to | ,‘

a share transfer agreement (the Agreement") entered mto with Beida Jade Bird on 24 March
2005 the sum ‘was uttltsed as earnest money for acquiring @ 44% equity interest in a property ‘
development company in Beijing. The Directors expect that the proposed acquisition transaction
shall take place on or before 31 July 2005. In connection with the Agreement and the proposed
acquisition, the Company has made an announcement to that effect on 24 March ZOOSF
Pursuant to the Agreement, the earnest money shall be fully refunded to the Company, without
interest, if the conditions set forth in the Agreement have not either been fulfilled or wai’v'ect',.~ .

and hence, the proposéd acquisition does not take place. in the opinion_ of the Directors,‘Béida: L

Jade Bird is able to repay the earnest money, if so required, and a guarantee for repayment h"aé"

_been obtained from a company controlled by the Peking University.

‘ Shduld the conditions precedent (including but not limited to approval by the independent

shareholders of the Com_pany and all necessary approvals and permissions from the relevant
government and/or regulatory authorities) of the Agreement be fulfilled or waived by the

Company, the éarnest zrnoney would be applied and recorded in the consolidated balance sheet

of the Group as interest in an associate.
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22,

23.

24,

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

. Company
2004 ) 2003

RMB000 | RMB'000-

Unlisted investments, at cost ‘ s y 2000 | . -

Short term unlisted investments comprise two investment funds invthe PRC of RMB1,000,000

each.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group v v Company

RMB'000 | RMB'000." RMB’000 -RMB'000

Cash and bank balances ' 101,739 | 82;9771 : 49,735 43,920

Time deposits o - 220,327 |- 195,032 102,352 | 195,032
Cash and cash equivalents 322,066 | 278,009 152,087 | 238,952

NT— N —
SHORT TERM BANK LOANS

Short term bank loans of the Group and the Compeany bore interest at rates ranging from
approximately 2.84% to 5. 31 % per annum at 31 December 2004 (2003 2 84% to 5.31 %)

. A.shareholder of the Company and a sub5|dxary of Peklng Un|ver5|ty, the ummate controlhng

shareholder of the Company have Jomtly guaranteed ‘certain of the Group and the Company’s
bank loans of up to US$37.5 million, or gquivalent to approxmately RMBB1O mtlhon (2003:
RMB393 million), as at the balance sheet date (note 32(9))

As at 31 December 2003, there were also short term bank \oans of the Group of RMB3,060, OOO

secured by mortgages over certain.of the Group's buddlngs mach«nery and equnpment ‘with an:“"

aggregate net book value of approxxmately}RMB1,097,000}(‘note__13).‘ S

2004 2003 2004 : 2003

69



Beijing Beida Jade 8ird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited « Arnnual Report 2004

Notes to Financial Statements

3w December 2004

~ 25.°  TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at the balance sheét date, based on the
date on which the significant risks and rewards of ownership of materials were transferred by ]
_the suppliers to the Group, is as follows: ‘

Group

2004 2003

RMB'000 | RMB000
QOutstanding balances aged: _
0 to 3 months ) 5,353 9,517

3 to 6 months 1,210 184

6 to 12 manths ‘ ‘ 18 2,841
Over 12 months 8,410 3,962
14,991 16,904

—

inciuded in the trade payables of the Group is the following amount due to a shareholder:

2004 2003

RMB'000 RMB'000

~Amount due to a shareholder (note 32 (h) 32 ‘ 1,170 .

s ,The amount due o a shareholder as at 37 December 2004 was |nterest free, unsecured and dld _ '
’ -’?not have frxed repayment terms

26. SHARE CAPITAL:

2004 2003

. : RMB’000 RMBIO0C
" Registered, issued and fully paid: o
700,000,000 (2003 700 000,000) legal persan shares of o
RMBO 10 each ‘ . 70,000 70,000
‘ _4847,800{000 (2003:‘ '404,000,000) H shares of )
RMBO0.1Q each 48,480 40,400
118,480 110,400
NE———
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

On 27 June 2004, 80,800,000 new H shares of the Company with-a par value of RMBO.1 each
were issued to the public and listed on the GEM by way of placing at a price of HK$§0.75
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.80) per H share. - ‘ C

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the above move'ment‘in the
Company’s issued share capital is as follows: . ' =

v Issued
Number of share ‘Capital
shares in issue capital reserve Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
At 31 December 2003 and )

1 January 2004 1,104,000,000 110,400 322,479 432,879

Placement of new H shares 80,800,000 8,080 © 56,210 - 64,290
1,184,800,000 118,480 . 378,689 497,169

" Share issue expenses - . - . (2,396) (2,396)

Transfer to a capital reserve (i) - - - . 1,427 ' 1,427

At 31 December 2004 1,184,800,000 118,480 :377,720 496,200

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 27 to the financial statements.
(1) Details vare set out in note (i} in the consclidated statement of chahgesvin_equity;
© -27.. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme, pursuént to which the board. of diredor’s of the .
Company may grant options to full-time employee‘spf‘ the Group (including: directors of the
Company) to subscribe for H shares, subject to a maximu'm of 30% of'fhe‘nominal value of the'"_ L
issued share capital of the Company from time to time, e‘xcluding far this purpose éhafes issued
on the exercise of options. The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s board ~
of directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i)-the nominal value of an H'share'; (.ii') the
average of the closing pkrices of the H shares qu'o_ted on the GEM on th"e five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (jii) the closing price of the H shares quoted on
the GEM on the date of grant, which must be a business day. However, employees who are
PRC nationals shall not be entitled to exercise the option until the curremf restrictions on these
persons from subscribing or dealing in H shares imposed by the laws and regulations in the PRC
have been abolished or removed. ' '
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- EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

“.t3foresaid scheme. .

 RESERVES

Company

Statutory
Capital reserve Retained
reserve funds profits Total
Notes RMB 000> RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB'000
31 December 2002 and
1 January 2003 251,271 16,649 73,548 341,468
Issue of H shares 75,164 - - 75,164
Share issue expenses (5,610) - - (5,610}
Payable written back** 1,654 - - 1,654
Net profit for the year - - 9,091 9,091
Transfer from/(to) reserves - 1,034 (1,034) -
‘ ' 31 ‘Decer‘nb_er:'ZVQO‘B and S ,
: ,. 17January 2’0~04 ‘ : R 322,479 17,683 -~ 81,605 421,767
Issue of H shares 26 56,210 - - 56,210
Share issue expenses 26 (2,396) - , - ‘ (2,396)
Net loss for the year . - - (57,809) (57,809}
Transfer to .a capital reserve (i) 1,427 - ©(1,427) -
Transfer from/(to) reserves  17(1) - 34,896 (34,896) -
interim dividend. 11(2) S - (11,848) (11,848) .
31 December 2004 1 377,720 52,579 (24375) 405924
x The cép/_'tal r‘es'e‘rvévma}./.fon‘ly bé used to increase share capital.
> In 2003, the Company reached a wavier agreement with an unrelated party, who had provided

,“f"A\é;;qf the date of these financial statements, no share options have been granted under the

services to the Company during the listing of the Company’s H shares on the GEM of the Stock .
Exchange in. July 2000. Pursuant to the waiver agreement, the amount had been recorded as part
of the issuance expenses for the listing in 2000 and in accordance with the prevailing accounting
principles. and requlations in the PRC, the amount waived was included in the capital reserve
© account in 2003 accordingly.

(i) Details are set out in note (i} in the cansolidated statement of cha‘nges- in equity.
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary

Net assets acquired:
Cash and bank balances’
Due to a related party

Satisfied by:
Cash

2004 2003
RMB 000 * RMB'000
1,144 -
(731) -
413 -

413

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition

of a subsidiary is as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

Net inflow of cash and cash equ_i‘valen'vtvs‘ih r,es';je;jt»‘
of the acquisition of & subsidiary R

2004

2003
RMB"000 RMB'000

(413) -

1,144 -

731 | -
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29" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)

0 (b). Disposal of a subsidiary

In 2004, the Company disposed of its entire shareholding interest in Beij'ing Beida Jade :
Bird Silicon Innovation Company Limited (”Beijing Silicon Innovation”), a 60% owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a consideration of RMB3,600,000. '

2004 2003

‘ RMB’'000 RMB’OOO

Net assets disposed of: ‘ ‘ '
Property, plant and equipment, net 94 -

" Trade receivables S ’ 136 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 8,778 -
Inventories : 4,839 -
Cash and bank balances 896 -
Trade payables (778) -
Advances from customers {3,251) -
Accrued liabilities and other payables (6,804) .
Minority interests (1,564) -

Net assets ' 2,346 -

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) 1,254 -

Satisfied by: | 3,600 el
Due from a related party (note 32(b)) C 1,200 L —
Cash " ~ ' ’ 2,400 .

3,600 | . oo

“An analysis of the net inﬂbw of cash and cash equivalents;in respect of the disposal of a
subsidiary is as follows: '

7 N\ V ~
2004 2003
RMB'000 RMB000
Cash consideration ' 2,400 ‘ -
Cash and bank balances disposed (896) -,
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respact )
of the disposal of a subsidiary 1,504 -
N
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29, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (qunt'd)' Sl

(3]

Disposal of a business

In 2003, the Company disposed of its entire assets and business of DVR to Shenzhen
Jacte Bird, & refated party of the Company, for a consideration of RMB?,QO0,000.

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Inventories
Accrued liabilities and other payables

Gain on disposal of a business (note 5)

Satisfied by:
Due from a related party (note 32(h))

2004

2003

RMB’000

RMB'000

146
1,841
126
193 .
508

(1,176)

1,638
1,362

3,000
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. “.'Co'mmitments

L

~(a) - Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease arrangements.

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years.

As at 31 December 2004, tvhe Group and the Company had the following minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings:

Group
2004 2003
RMB 000 RMB'000 -
Within one year 1,007 1,256
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 170 1,241
1,177 2,497
NE——
Company
2004 2003 -
RMB'000 RMB 000"
- Within one year B o 475 436
" In the second to fifth years, inclusive . ' ‘ 119 | - 546
594 982

—

As at 31 December 2004, save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company did not
have future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases.

" (b) . Capital commitment

) Group .
2004 12003
RMB’000 RMB*000

Within one year 2,461 | - -
“In the second to fifth years, inclusive - -

2,461 -
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the Company I"i‘a'd' any significant contingent
liabilities. - B .

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) A list of related parties and their relationship with ‘the'-C-S‘rovup are as follows:

Name of related party Relationshipv‘ '

Peking University The ultimate controlling shareholder

The Institute A department of Peking University

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited A shareholder of the Company; also a
("Beida Jade Bird"”) company controlled by Peking University

Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics A shareholder of the Company; also 2
System Engineering Company ("Beida Yu Huan") c_ompany'cont'rolled by Peking University .

Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech . A shareholder of the Company; aléo a
Company Limited ("Beijing Tiangiao") company controlled by Peking University

Shanghai Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Limited A shareholder of the Company; also a
("Shanghai Jade Bird") company controlled by Peking University

Chengdu Beida Jade Bird Nuclear Application A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bir_d' a

Research Institute Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Jade Bird")

Shenyang Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Limited A subsidig‘ry(of Beida jade Bird
{"Shenyang Jade Bird") = S : S

Hong Kong Jade Bird Sci-Tech Limited ' A subs‘i'dia'ry of Beida Jadefgird
("HK Jade Bird Sci-Tech”) o o

Wisdom New Group Limited A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird
{("Wisdom New Group”) C o

Shenzhen Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Company A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird
Limited (“Shenzhen Jade Bird") ‘ C
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32, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
— o - (a) A list of related partié; and their relationship with the Groﬁupv are as f;)lloWs':‘(Cont’d)
Name of related party Relationship

Hainan Jade 8ird Safeguard Fire Alarm and An associate of Beida Jade Bird
Monitor Technologies Company Limited
(*Hainan Jade Bird")

Weifang Beida Jade Bird Huaguang Sci-Tech - A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird .
Company Limited _("Jade Bird Huaguéng”) ‘

Beida On-line ' An associate of Beida Jade 8ird

Sichuan Tian Mu Monitored Security Company An associate of Beida Jade Bird
Limited ("Tian Mu™)

Zhuhai Beida Education and Science Park A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird
Company Limited ("Zhuhai Beida Education”™)

' ‘Gu‘angzhgu Beida Jade Bird 8IS Company Limited A company indirectly controlied by
" ("Guangzhou Jade Bird") Peking University

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Company A shareholder of the Company; also a
{“Jade Bird Software”) o company controlled by Peking University

Beida Jade Bird S.ecvur‘i'ty System Company Limited =~ A subsidia‘ry of Béida Jade Bird
l(-"S_e'c'urity.S'Lystem"_)- o o ' A

= Bei_ji,rj"g‘ science and Technology Erjt"erp.rise' A D :A"_cé‘mpahy'cont»rqllévdb by Peking University
. Development Center of Peking University. ' P T ‘

* (Beida SciTech™) T
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) ‘

(b)

Peking University is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the- Company. In additio"hi’to‘ i
the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with Peking University and the compames and
parties under the control of Peking Umversny during the year:

Sale of embedded systems products and provision
of total solution services to:
Beijing Tiangiao
Beida Jade Bird
Peking University

Disposal of the business of DVR to
Shenzhen Jade Bird (note 29 (c))

Rental expense for an office building charged
by Beida Jade Bird

" Interest income on an amount due from -

Beida On-line (note 6)

Rental expense for equipment charged
by the Institute* (note 6)

Rental income for equipment earned from
the Institute* (note 8)

Purchase of a 100% equity interest in Beida Jade Bird
Overseas Education Limited from HK Jade Bird
Sci-Tech (note 29(a))

Disposal of a 20% equity interest in Beijing Silicon
Innovation to Beida Yu Huan (note 29(b))

r““'—\ '
2004 2003
RMB'000 - RMB000
424 981

239 217
- 179

663 1,377

- 3,000

976 ‘816

765 765

- 315

- 315

413 -
1,200 | -

Pursuant to the equipment lease agreemenfs entered into between the Company and the

Institute dated 17 April 2000, the Institute leased certain equipment to the Company for a
period of five years at an hourly rate of RMB120, and the Company leased certain equipment
to the Institute for a period of five years for an annual fee of RMBT,260,000: The aforesa/d

agreements were terminated on 16 April 2003.

The d|rectors of the Company are of the op|n|on that the above transactlons W|th
felated parties were conducted in the usual course of busmess
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- 'RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the technology licence agreement entered into between the Company and
Beumg Tiangiao dated 17 April 2000, Beijing T:anqlao has granted an exclusive licence
to the Company for the use of certam GPS technology for a period of 10 years, in return:
for a royalty fee calculated at 3% on the total sales of products usmg this technology
No royalty fee was charged by Beijing T|anq|ao to the Group in 2004 and 2003 as the

Group did not have any sales of products usmg GPS technology in these years.

PQESuant to the JB-CASE Technology Licence Agreement and Trademark Licence Agreemenf
entered into between the Company and Jade Bird Software dated 17 April 2000, Jade
Bird Software granted to the Company a non-exclusive licence to use the JB-CASE
technology and certain of its trademarks for a period of 10 years for nil consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group purchased certain computer
products amounting to RMB45,600,000 (2003: RMB32,028,000) which were handled by
Beijing Tiangiao on behalf of the Group at no charge. ‘

During the year, the Company entered into an office building operating lease agreement
with Beida Jade Bird, with a right of renewal exercisable by the Company. Pursuant to
this agreement, the expiry date is 1 April 2006 and the annual rental expense is
approximately RMB475,200.

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had banking facilities of USD37.5 million (equivalent
te approximately RMB310 million) for short term loans (note 33). These short term bank

' “loans were jointly guaranteed by'a shareholder of the Company and a sub5|d|ary of
' Pekmg UmverSIty the ultlmate controllmg shareholder of the Company.
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32.

(h)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

balances with shareholders and related parties:.

Trade receivables from a
shareholder (note 719):
Beida Jade Bird

Trade receivables from related
parties (note 19):
Security System
Hainan Jade Bird
Guangzhou Jade Bird
Chengdu Jade Bird
Shenyang Jade Bird

Prepaymenté, deposits and
other receivables from a
related party:

Jade Bird Huaguang

Due from shareholders
{note 20):
Beijing Tjanqiao
Beida Jade Bird »
Peking Wniversity - .
Shanghai Jade Bird

Included in the consolidated balance sheet and the balance sheet are the. following

Company

: Group ~ . . .

( 2004 ) 2003 2004 ) 2003
RMB*000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB 000
- 152 - 152

5 129 5 129

12 - 12 -

117 - 17 | -

12 - 12 | -

61 - 61 -

207 129 207 129

200 200 200 200
40,000 30,407 40,000 30,407
1,781 879 781 879 -

- 42 - | a2

2,000 - 2,000 -
43,781 31,328 42,781 31,328
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) (Cont'd)

By ( 2004 )

Due from related parties
(note 21):

Beida Sci-Tech
Beida On-line .
HK Jade Bird Sci-Tech
Shenzhen Jade Bird '
Security System
Jade Bird Huaguang
Hainan Jade Bird

Guangzhou Jade Birc-i‘,
Zhuhai Beida Education -

Wisdom New Group

Trade payable to a

_shateholder (note 25)‘:':_{ o
Beijing Tianqiabi o

Advances from c_usto_mer.é‘-
(from shareholders); ~~
Beijing Tianqiad
- Peking University
Shanghai Jade 8ird

Advances from cdstomers
{(from a related party):
Tian Mu
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R .. Company
2003 2004 2003
RMB’000 RMB'000. | RMB'000 RMB'000
47,000 8,600 47,000 8,600
8,313 7,859 8,313 7,859
287,321 3,265 - 3,265
3,600 3,000 3,600 3,000
1,817 1,429 - 62
842 842 842 842
- 250 - 250
- 99 - 99
- 30 - 29
32,860 - - -
381,753 25,374 59,755 24,006
32 1,170 - -
266 150 190 150
- Yy - -
123 - 6 -
389 192 196 150
o - 110 - 110
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(hy (Contdy
Group U D ‘C‘orﬁpany

o 2004 ) .. 2003 2004 ) 2003

RMB000 | RMB’ 000. - RMB’000 |~ RMB'000

Due to shareholders

(note 20): ]
Beida Jade Bird 860 1,113 583 | 431
Beijing Tiangiao . 120 |- 179. 45 | - 179
Shanghai Jade Bird ) 281 = 281 -
Peking University: - - N - © 0 .-400 - 400
1,261 ' 1,692 309 1,010
Due to related par‘tiesr
(note 21): o _ L ‘
Security System 387 . 387, - -
Shenzhen Jade Bird - - 355 355 355 355
HK Jade Bird. Sci- Tech S 1141 | 0o N
Guangzhou Jade ’Bl_rd g 10 | LRSS 110 ' -
1,993 742 465 | 355

33. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2004, tHe__ GroUp:h‘aa'banking faci{ifie$ oyf\apbr_oxbima‘tel.y USD37.5 million
(equivalent to appro’xima‘t'elybRM8310'.miHion) (2003: RMBB%V‘mi'Hidn) fof ého'rt term bank
loans, which were all ut|||sed These facilities are secured by Jomt guarantees by a shareholder -
of the Company and a sub51d|ary of, Pekmg Umvers:ty the u!tlmate controllmg shareholder of '
the Company, in respect of a loan of UsSD37. 5 mllllon equnvalent to approx;mately RMB310
“million (2003: RMB393 million) (note 32(g) S ‘

In addition, as at 31 December 2003, the Group's buildings, machmery and equlpment with an
aggregate net book value of approxumately RMB1 097,000 were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (note 13) :
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: 31 December 2004

4. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

".”The_Company' entered into an Agreement with Beida Jade Bird on 24 March 2005, In this

connection, the amounts due from related parties as at 31 December 2004 in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB320 million was utilised as earnest money for écquiring a44%-
equity interest in a property development company in Beijing, details of which are set out in.
note 21 to these fmancxal statements,

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statéments were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 March 2005.
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